Tuesday, 17 November 2015 at 6.00 pm



Conservation Area Advisory Group

PRESENT:-

Councillor Rodohan (Chairman) and Councillors Belsey, Smart and Swansborough

OFFICERS:

Mrs S Leete-Groves, Specialist Advisor (Conservation)

ADVISORS:

Mr Crook, Royal Institute of British Architects

26 Minutes of the meeting held on 6 October 2015.

The minutes of the meeting held on 6 October 2015 were submitted and approved and the Chairman was authorised to sign them as a correct record.

27 Apologies for absence.

An apology for absence was reported from Mr Howell.

28 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) by members as required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and of other interests as required by the Code of Conduct.

None were declared.

29 Planning Applications - Decisions of the Borough Council

The decisions of the Planning Committee on applications in Conservation Areas were reported.

NOTED.

30 Planning Applications for Consideration.

The Specialist Advisor (Conservation) reported on planning applications for consideration in Conservation Areas. The Group's comments were set out in the schedule below.

1) 151068, 17 CARLISLE ROAD, MEADS, EASTBOURNE

Heritage Value: Conservation Area

Proposal: Conversion of the existing residential accommodation on the first and second floors to form two self-contained flats and one maisonette, including the extension of the roof to the rear.

CAAG Comments: The Group acknowledged that in isolation and due to its location, the proposal would not result in adverse harm to the surrounding conservation area. Concerns were however raised that the proposal may set a precedent for the remaining terrace, which currently had an unaltered historic roofscape that contributed positively to the immediate and wider conservation area. The Group also expressed concerns with the lack of information submitted by the applicant.

2) 151183 (PP) & 151184 (LB), 37 MARINE PARADE, EASTBOURNE, EAST SUSSEX, BN22 7AY

Heritage Value: Listed Building & Town Centre and Seafront Conservation Area

Proposal: Installation of railings to front boundary.

CAAG Comments: The Group were fully supportive of the proposal, however requested that the railing heads and finials be presented in a simplistic way, reflective of those in Cavendish Place. It was suggested that SG grade cast iron be used.

3) 151175, MEADS CLUB, MEADS ROAD, MEADS

Heritage Value: Meads Conservation Area

Proposal: Conversion to three dwellings including provision of a gable at

rear.

CAAG Comments: No objections raised.

NOTED.

31 Traditional Lighting Scheme.

The Specialist Advisor (Conservation) presented a verbal report to the Group on the removal of historic iron lamp posts in Conservation Areas or Areas of High Townscape Value.

Mr Crook, representing Eastbourne Society and the Royal Institute of British Architects gave an overview to the Group on the issue that had been discussed at a previous meeting of the Group under different membership. A number of historic lamp posts had been removed in the Granville Road and St John's Road area to improve lighting. Eastbourne Society had raised concerns that the removal of the lamp posts had damaged the character of the Conservation Areas, designated as such with the intention to preserve these features. An assurance from East Sussex County Council (ESCC) had been given that a consultation process would take place for any future removals.

The scheme, promoted by the Eastbourne Society, encouraged the relocation of cast iron lamp posts to streets of high value within identified areas, where the traditional form of lighting had overtime been lost to modern replacements. The lamp posts were especially important in the area consisting of Carlisle Road, Blackwater Road and St John's Road where it

formed a vista with the regularly spaced trees, adding greatly to the character of the area.

Although there was a general agreement between Eastbourne Society, East Sussex County Council and Eastbourne Borough Council that it would be desirable wherever possible to replace any modern lamp posts installed between road junctions with round-based lamp posts, the source of funding remained unclear. 11 replacement columns, priced at £1,000 each had been identified with three in St. John's Road and eight in Carlisle Road.

There was also an assurance that any modern lamp posts installed in Conservation Areas be painted black, in keeping with the historic lamp posts and that any cast iron lamp posts removed because of structural damage should be replaced with matching posts from the East Sussex County Council's store, if available.

The Group discussed the scheme and were fully supportive of retaining the historic iron lamp posts and preserving the character of the Conservation Areas or Areas of High Townscape Value. They recommended that a joint bid be submitted from East Sussex County Council and Eastbourne Borough Council.

RESOLVED (Unanimous): The Group recommended that the £11,000 required to replace the modern lamp posts with the traditional cast iron posts should be contributed equally from the Eastbourne Borough Council and East Sussex County Council budgets. The Specialist Advisor (Conservation) would report back to the Group at a future meeting.

32 Seafront Window Survey.

The Group discussed the window survey of properties on the seafront that was raised at the last meeting.

The Group was given clarification over the required planning permission when installing replacement windows, following some preliminary work undertaken by officers.

It was requested that at the next meeting of the Group, officers provide information around timescale for completion of the survey.

NOTED.

33 New Listings

The Specialist Advisor (Conservation) advised that there were no new listings.

NOTED.

34 Dates of future meetings - All at 6.00 p.m. at the Town Hall

The date of the next meeting was confirmed as the 5 January 2015.

The meeting closed at 6.56 pm

Councillor Rodohan (Chairman)